
 

 
 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 
 

Date: 
 

Wednesday, 15 September 2021 

Time: 

 

2.00 pm 

Venue: 

 

Virtual Meeting 

7 September 2021 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies for Absence.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).  

5. Declaration of Interests:  

  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

 

6. Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee. (Pages 
7 - 12) 

7. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 

 

8. Aftercare Following Discharge from Hospital - Paul Bytheway, Chief Operating 
Officer, Royal Stoke University Hospital  & Jennie Collier - Managing Director, 
Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. (Presentation) (2:10 pm)  

9. Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Annual Update - Neil Carr, Chief 

Executive Officer. (2:40 pm)  

10. West Midlands Ambulance Service - Review of Community Ambulance Stations & 

rural provision of the Ambulance Service) - Mark Docherty, Director of Clinical 
Commissioning & Strategic Development/Executive Nurse. (3:10 pm) (Pages 13 - 

18) 

11. Work Programme. (3:40 pm) (Pages 19 - 20) 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



  
Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:- 
 

i) Chairman’s items; 
ii) Members items; 

 
 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor B A Hughes (Chair) Councillor J T Jones (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor R Alcock Councillor C J S Atkins 

Councillor B Cawley Councillor E Fallows 
Councillor K Flunder Councillor I Herdman 

Councillor T Holmes Councillor A Hulme 
Councillor I Lawson Councillor L A Malyon 
Councillor T McNicol Councillor D Price 

Councillor J Redfern Councillor T Riley 
Councillor J Salt Councillor L Swindlehurst 

Councillor P Wood  
 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 23 JUNE 2021 
 

PRESENT: Councillor B A Hughes (Chair)   

 
 Councillors C J S Atkins, E Fallows, K Flunder, I Herdman, 

T Holmes, J T Jones, T Riley, J Salt, L Swindlehurst and P Wood. 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: M Bowen  

 K Hoptroff  

 B Johnson  

 R Ward  

 P Wilkinson  

 

APOLOGIES: Councillors B Cawley, A Hulme, I Lawson, L A Malyon, T McNicol 
and D Price. 

 
106 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 

 

Councillor Hoptroff attended as substitute member for Councillor Price and 
Councillor Wilkinson substituted for Councillor Malyon. 

 
107 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 

 

DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel held on 3 March 2021 be APPROVED as a correct record and signed by the 

Chair. 
 

108 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 

PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN). 
 

There were no urgent items. 
 

109 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 

 

Agenda No. Member Declaring 
Interest 

Nature of Interest 

Agenda item not 

specified 

Cllr T. Riley Other – A family 

member is an NHS 
Employee. 

Agenda item not 
specified 

Cllr P. Wood Other – Daughter is 
employed by Midlands 

Partnership Foundation 
NHS Trust 

 

 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 23 June 2021 
 

2 
 

110 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING OF THE HEALTH AND CARE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE. 

 

  
DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Care Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 16 March 2021 be NOTED. 

 

111 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 
 

None had been received. 

 
112 NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE COMBINED HEALTHCARE NHS TRUST 

ANNUAL UPDATE. (PRESENTATION) (2:10PM) 
 

The Panel received a Mental Health Services Annual Update presentation which 

covered the following subject areas:- 
 

- Trust Overview 
- Covid-19 Response 
- Service Development in North Staffordshire 

- Locality Working 
- Children and Young People’s Mental Health Support 

- Recovery Focussed Approach 
 
In response to a query in relation to improved transitional mental health services for 

young adults, it was confirmed that a new team, focussed on seamless transition for 
16-25 year olds, had been created in the area which had received referrals from the 

beginning of the year.   
 
Discussion took place around the Kniveden site and it’s potential to provide services 

to a larger number of people, given the nature of its location and access to open 
spaces. The Executive Teams of the main provider organisations had worked 

together with the aim to deliver collaborative integrated care for patients. Additional 
input from multi-disciplinary team staff, Occupational Therapy, the Ashcombe Centre 
and community offers across the Moorlands was required to develop the scope of 

the facility. The Panel was assured that dependant on a number of risk factors 
proposals for Kniveden would proceed. Peter Axon – Chief Executive Officer, offered 

to attend a future meeting of the Panel to set out the Place Agenda. 
 
Members were pleased with the organisation’s focus on community and locality 

services. A suggestion was made for training to be available for voluntary sector staff 
and good quality local engagement was highlighted. 

 
As part of the Community Mental Health Transformation Programme, a significant 
amount of funding was due to be received by Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. 

Health equality assessments had been carried out for each primary care network 
and looked at social determinants, employment and demographics. These data 

would be used to decide how funding was invested locally and tailored to address 
specific needs. Up to 25% of the funding had been ring-fenced to commission 
services from the voluntary sector.    

 
The Chair thanked the representatives from the Trust for their attendance. 

 
DECIDED: That the presentation be noted. Page 4



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 23 June 2021 
 

3 
 

 
113 UPDATE ON THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF LEEK MINOR INJURIES 

UNIT. (2:45PM) 
 

Neil Carr - Chief Executive Officer, MPFT advised, that following his commitment to 

re-open the Leek Minor Injuries Unit,  it had re-opened on 21st June 2021. There 
were two issues that had to be taken into account. Firstly, the local Covid-19 

outbreak in Leek and enough capacity at A&E and Haywood Walk-in Centre to 
enable the MIU to re-open.  
 

The opening hours of the MIU were 9am-5pm with a commitment to extend the 
hours to 8am-8pm, as soon as it was safe to do so and the pressure had reduced 

across the wider NHS system. Officers emphasised the key priorities were the safety 
of both patients and staff and the delivery of good quality care.  
 

Three additional nurses had been recruited to work at Leek Moorlands Hospital and 
the diagnostic facilities were also fully operational. 

 
Given the difficulties due to the pandemic and the local out-break of Covid-19, a 
member congratulated the Trust for its achievements. 

 
Tracy Bullock – CEO, Royal Stoke Hospital, gave an update on the pressures on 

A&E. The situation was highly unusual, as the number of patients which had 
presented at the A&E Department was higher than during the winter months. This 
level of demand had also been seen at GP surgeries and impacted other urgent care 

centres.  Due to partnership working, patients hadn’t waited in corridors, ambulance 
queues were rare and the numbers of patients waiting to be discharged was at an 

acceptable level.  
 
DECIDED: That the update be received. 

 
114 INTEGRATED CARE HUB. (3:15PM) 

 

Adam McKeown – Project Director, Integrated Care Delivery, gave a presentation to 
the Panel on hub locations, revitalisation of the Leek site, infrastructure to enable 

integrated care, the overarching programme and  work streams.  
 

Members queried if climate change mitigation has been factored into the building, 
the types of services that would be available at the site, engagement with the local 
community and if there were any plans for Cheadle Hospital 

 
The Trust was committed to work with the local community and key partners to 

ensure the Hub met the needs of the local population. Members were given 
assurance that the building would be as environmentally friendly as possible and be 
financed by the public sector. The provision of services would be evidence based, 

predominantly adult services, with a level of family provision and out-reach clinics. 
There was the potential for whole life span care to be provided at the site. 

 
Members were advised that there were currently no plans for the delivery of services 
from Cheadle Hospital. 

 
The Chair thanked the Officers for the informative presentation. 

 
DECIDED:  Page 5



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 23 June 2021 
 

4 
 

1) That the presentation be noted; 
2) For Neil Carr – CEO, MPFT to be invited to a meeting of the Panel towards 

the end of the year to provide an update on the Leek Integrated Care Hub. 
 

115 WORK PROGRAMME. (3:45PM) 

 
DECIDED:- That the Panel’s Work Programme be agreed, subject to the addition of 

the following items:- 
 

 Dentistry 

 Regular updates on the Leek Integrated Care Hub 
 

 
The meeting closed at 3.40 pm 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 6



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting held on 
9 August 2021 

 
Present: Jeremy Pert (Chairman) 

 

Attendance 

 

Philip Atkins, OBE 
Martyn Buttery 
Richard Cox 

Phil Hewitt 
Barbara Hughes 

 

David Leytham 
Paul Northcott (Vice-Chairman 
(Overview) 

Janice Silvester-Hall 
Colin Wileman 

Ian Wilkes 
 

 
 

 
Apologies: Jak Abrahams, Charlotte Atkins, Joyce Bolton, Rosemary Claymore, 

Ann Edgeller and Thomas Jay 

 
PART ONE 

 
19. Declarations of Interest 

 

Councillor Daniel Maycock declared an interest in item 4 relating to George Bryan 
Centre as a former service user. 

Councillor Richard Cox declared an interest in item 4 George Bryan Centre a family 
member was a former service user. 
 
20. Minutes of the last meeting held on 5 July 2021 

 

That the minutes of the meeting 5 July 2021 be approved and signed as a correct 
record. 
 
21. George Bryan Centre 

 

The Committee received a report and presentation relating to the temporary closure of 
George Bryan Centre (GBC) in Tamworth following a fire in February 2019. The 
Operations Manager MPFT outlined the background and current position for GBC and 

mental health services that previously were provided there.   
 

The Committee considered the proposals for engagement events and the process for 
deciding the long-term solutions for mental health services which would be based on the 
best balance of clinical evidence and evidence gained through public involvement. 

 
The Committee noted that: 

 

 Since the fire, services had been provided at St George’s hospital in Stafford or 
through community mental health services, which had been developed during the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

- 2 - 
 

closure to expand expertise and provision in the community. Staff from GBC had 
been either redeployed or re-trained. Work was underway to determine the future of 

the mental health services through engagement events and an options appraisal.  

 Previous engagement had informed the business case alongside the clinical 

evaluation, further engagement events, and equality impact assessments. All 
information gathered through listening and engagement was used to develop the 
Clinical Service Model which would be evaluated, and services shaped.   

 The Clinical Service Model would also take into consideration the Integrated Care 
Strategy (ICS) programme for adult and older people’s mental health services 

across Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent. 
 

The following comments and responses to Members questions were noted: 
 

 The GBC had been insured by the Midlands Partnership Foundation Trust (MPFT), 

detail of the insurance funding had been calculated on the damage extent and 
reasoning for the fire, this information was not available at the meeting but would be 

sent to Members.  

 MPFT consultation events included service users from GBC, other mental health 
services across Staffordshire and members of the workforce. A link to the survey 

was available on the website and would be shared with members alongside more 
detail on qualitative data requested.  

 It was confirmed that all service users were over 18 years old. 

 Members highlighted the need to hold face to face events to bring on board service 

users or carers who could reach out to people who had used or intend to use 
services. They indicated that the information would bring perspectives to shape 
services to what people want and need, and in doing so people would feel included. 

MPFT welcomed the opportunity to talk with Staffordshire Healthwatch about the co-
production group, to engage face to face with individuals who had experience of 

services. 

 There had been no significant increase in serious mental health incidents drawing 

on other services such as police and ambulance in the communities during the 
lockdown period. It was noted that the way services were delivered during this 
period was different and not comparable to other periods. A ward had been 

available at St Georges hospital for short term stays and average length of stay 
during this period was 23 days, this benchmarked well across the country.  

 Members requested further data about re-admissions to make a useful comparison 

and highlighted the importance of clinical evidence to inform the business case.  

 Members thanked staff for work they had done in difficult circumstances.  

 It was explained that people liked local services, but they were not always the best 
pathway for the individual based on clinical health outcomes.  

 The Community Impact Assessment would identify issues such as transport and 
travel and mitigate against the impact on the individual. This would be part of the 

decision making process before a final decision was made.  

 It was explained that this work aligned to the wider mental health programme.  
 

Resolved: 
1. That the update report and presentation were noted. 

Page 8



 

- 3 - 
 

2. That Committee requested the link to more detailed information from engagement 
feedback, data of re-admissions to ensure clinical evidence was included in the 

business case and confirmation of the insurance funding details.  
3. That the final draft proposal be considered by the Committee at a future meeting. 

 

 
22. Maternity Services 

 
The Committee received an update report and presentation relating to the Temporary 

Closure of Free-Standing Midwife-led birthing Services.  
At the request of the Chair, the Lead Midwife Maternity Transformation Programme 
gave a brief overview of the Ockenden Review of maternity services at Shrewsbury and 

Telford Hospitals and of the Better Births Report published in 2016.  
 

Ockenden Review - The interim report had been received and a second report was due 
later this year. The report raised themes which reflected recommendations of other 
reviews of maternity services across the Country.  The Ockenden report highlighted the 

need for safe staffing, good foetal monitoring training, regular risk assessments and the 
need for learning from incidents and to include families in what we need to learn.  

Better Births Report – This resulted in a national maternity transformation programme 
which had been translated to regional transformation programmes. Recommendations 
from the report had highlighted safe staffing, training and how we include our women and 

families when planning maternity services. 
 

The Lead Midwife provided an overview of the presentation and report relating to the 
temporary closure of freestanding midwife-led birthing units (FMBUs) at Samuel 
Johnson Hospital in Lichfield and County Hospital in Stafford which provided low risk 

care maternity services. 
  

The Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Sustainability and Transformation Partnership 
(STP) undertook engagement activity in summer 2019, information was utilised to 
develop and refine the Clinical Model of Care. An options appraisal process took place 

between November 2019 and February 2020, but the transformation programme was 
paused in March 2020 due to the beginning of the pandemic.  At this time the birthing 

element at the two FMBUs were suspended in order to consolidate resource into the 
main maternity units. Due to current pressures, the need for safety in maternity services 
and that the Delta Variant was having more of an impact on pregnant women the 

FMBUs remain temporarily closed. The impact of the suspension of birthing units was 
being monitored and consultation was ongoing with families to understand what was 

needed for future maternity services in Staffordshire. 
 
The following comments and responses to questions were noted: 

 

 The engagement process to recap and sense check the previous involvement work 

would help understand any potential negative impact of the proposed model of care.  

 Patient and staff safety was at the forefront of future maternity services to ensure a 
professional and safe service was being provided.  

 When considering the online maternity survey, it was considered that there was a 
need to consult families and to reach out to minority communities. Also, to be 

mindful of the need for compassion in maternity care when working with families and 

Page 9



 

- 4 - 
 

individuals care. Healthwatch Staffordshire would offer support with this 
engagement. 

 There was a need to communicate information about vaccination safety for pregnant 
women. 

 The Trusts would provide revised business cases on how they could reinstate the 
birthing services to the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Maternity and Neonatal 

Programme Board in Autumn 2021 which would include development and workforce 
training. The earliest the on-demand model of care could go live was Autumn/Winter 
2021.   

 
Resolved: 

1. That the report and presentation were noted. 
2. That Committee requested further data about the trend for home births to be 

circulated. 

3. That the final proposals would be considered by the Committee at a future 
meeting. 

 
 
23. Covid-19 Update 

 
The Committee considered an update relating to Covid-19 which included detail of the 

current position, case rates, hospitalisations, death rate and infection rates. 
 
The Committee noted that the data revealed the start of a downward trend and plateau 

phase in infection rates. The highest infection group in 7 day case rates was 18-34 age 
group, which was continuing to rise. Hospitalisations were stable and death rate was 

down. Additional pressures were highlighted to be workforce shortages in health and 
social care. 
 

The following comments and responses to questions were noted: 
 

 Vaccination rates had increased but were slowing down particularly for 18-34 year 
olds, this may be partly due to the rise in infection rates in younger age groups, 
once diagnosed with Covid there was a need to quarantine for 28 days before they 

could access their next dose. 

 The local outbreak management plan had been updated recently.  

 There was a need and a role for members to keep sharing the message in 
communities to be cautious and respectful of others. Key messages were to 

maintain sensible precautions to limit spread of infection, get tested regularly and 
get vaccinated as soon as possible.   

 The pressures in UHMN NHS Trust were real with 40-50 people in hospital and 

some in ITU including pregnant women. NHS was seeing increased demands on all 
NHS services and there was a pressure to catch up on backlog lists.  

 There were consistently higher testing rates in Staffordshire, people were being 
encouraged to get lateral flow tests if showing any signs of infection.  There were 
plenty of opportunities to get tested with pop up testing centres and LFT avai lable 

on request. 

 In terms of vaccination programme work with employers was ongoing to set up 

vaccination centres. Full guidance for vaccinating under 18’s was awaited before 
they could be rolled out in the same way other elements had been.   A variety of 

Page 10



 

- 5 - 
 

approaches and incentives were being considered to encourage younger age 
groups to get vaccinated.  

 It was considered there were other seasonal illnesses to prepare for this winter and 
that there was a role for members to promote the need to immunise against all 

illnesses not just Covid.  

 The Cabinet Support Member requested that the Committee consider a report 

relating to the take up of childhood immunisations during the pandemic to a future 
meeting in the work programme. 

 By law Care workers had to be fully vaccinated by 11 November 2021 to continue to 

work in the care sector.  The Council was working with care home providers and 
other providers.  There was a projected 20% gap in care workers who would not be 

vaccinated by 11 November and the Council was working with providers to ascertain 
if was a true gap.  

 

The Chair highlighted the need to get the message out that care workers must start 
vaccinations by 18 September 2021 if they wanted to continue to provide front line 

services and that the role of Members was to promote the messages in the Districts and 
Boroughs. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the update report be noted. 

2. That Members continue to promote in their District and Borough Council areas 
the need for care workers to get vaccinated, the need for all residents to maintain 
sensible precautions to limit spread of infection, to get tested regularly and to get 

vaccinated as soon as possible.   
 

 
24. District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity 

 

Committee noted the update report and received verbal updates from District and 

Borough representatives as follows: 

 Ref. minute 11: Cannock Chase District Council had written to Royal 

Wolverhampton Hospital NHS Trust relating to an update on Cannock Chase 

MIU. 

 Ref. minute 12: East Staffordshire District Council representative was to attend a 
meeting with the Chair and CCG partner to consider GP access at Gordon Street 

Surgery. 

 

The Chair invited members to share outcomes from scrutiny carried out in the Districts 

and Boroughs which may be of wider relevance for Staffordshire. 

Resolved:  

1. That East Staffordshire District Council be invited to provide a paper sharing the 

outcomes of scrutiny work it is carrying out to assess the impact of voluntary 

sector work during the pandemic.  

2. That Tamworth Borough Council be invited to share the outcomes of scrutiny 

work on food vulnerability and healthy eating at the Committees ‘Wider 

Determinants of Health’ inquiry day in November 2021, and also to share 

Page 11



 

- 6 - 
 

outcomes on discussions in Tamworth relating to work with voluntary sector and 

communicating about mental health locally. 

 
25. Work Programme 2021-22 

 

Committee received the work programme and noted the following: 

1. The date of the next meeting was 20 September 2021 at 10am. 

2. The proposed date for the Mental Health Awareness Session was 28 September 

2021 at 10am. 
 

 
 
 

Chairman 

 

Page 12



2 
 

 

Briefing to Staffordshire Councillors Regarding Review of Ambulance CAS Points 
 
Appendices Attached:  
Appendix A - WMAS Statistical Data 
 
The following document has been pulled together by way of a briefing for Scrutiny Committee 
members following regarding ambulance provision within Staffordshire which we hope will be useful 
to members. 
 
Staffordshire led the country in designing a new, more efficient way of operating when it i ntroduced 
the ‘make ready’ system in the 1990s.  This was rolled out to the rest of the West Midlands following 
the merger of Staffordshire in the 2000s.  Today West Midlands Ambulance Service has a network of  
15 large Make Ready Hubs; in Staffordshire these are based in Stoke, Stafford and Lichfield.  When 
the move was made, there was initially also a network of rapid response vehicles (RRV), usually 4x4 
cars, that worked from strategic locations known as Community Ambulance Stations (CAS), very 
often in market towns across the West Midlands.  This was largely due to the call categorisation 
system that we were obliged to use at that time that concentrated on getting to calls very quickly, 
but not necessarily with the right resource. 
 
A good example of this would be a stroke patient; an RRV would get there in under eight minutes 
but, if the patient was FAST positive, what they actually needed was an ambulance to take them to a 
hyper-acute stroke unit for immediate care – we aren’t able to transport patients by car.  Doing so 
can make a huge difference to the life of the patient going forward.  What happened in the West 
Midlands to some extent, but much more so in other areas of the UK, was that the car would wait 
sometimes for hours for an ambulance to arrive to take the patient to hospital. This severely limited 
the ability of the hospital to provide the necessary care.  While we hit the statutory target, the 
patient didn’t get the care they needed, which clearly was not appropriate.  
 
With the introduction of the Ambulance Response Programme in 2018, WMAS firstly reduced and 
then got rid of entirely, it’s fleet of cars – at one point we had over 100 operating each day!  These 
were all replaced by ambulances.  As that move took place, we reduced the number of CAS points as 
they were simply not being used.  By 2020, we were down to just 13 sites.  The money saved from 
not having the CAS sites was invested in additional staff and ambulances.  
 
As you will be aware, the last few months have been extremely challenging; in July, we saw demand 
at levels that we could not possibly have envisaged. We set a new record for 999 calls on 19th July 
when we received and answered 6,418 calls in a 24-hour period!  When you consider a busy day at 
the moment should see us receive circa 4,000 calls, you can see the level of challenge we face.   
 
Another factor that has badly affected us over recent months have been the delays handing patients 
over at hospital.  As you will be aware, we are supposed to do so within 15 minutes of arriving at an 
A&E Department.  Unfortunately, many of the hospitals in our region are extremely challenged and 
this has led to some very long delays.  Indeed, in recent weeks, we have had crews wait over 11 
hours to hand their patient over.  During July, there were many days when we were losing over 
1,000 hours of ambulance time while crews waited to hand over patients – that is the equivalent of 
taking 85 ambulances off the road and putting them in a car park and deciding not to use them that 
day.  You can only imagine the challenges this brought us.   
 
To put it into context, in July 2019 (pre pandemic) we lost 4,818 hours during the month of July due 
to handover delays.  In July 2021, we lost 14,866 hours!  Almost 7,000 patients waited over an hour 
to be handed over, many of them having to be kept in the back of the ambulance.   Not only was this 

Page 13

Agenda Item 10



3 
 

 

poor for patients it put an intolerable strain on our staff with many regularly finishing their shift late, 
often to the tune of three hours on top of a 12 hour shift.  No other NHS staff face such situations. 
 
The Trust moved to REAP 4 (the highest level of concern) for the first time in its history.  At one 
point, all ten English ambulance services were at REAP 4.  Currently, only WMAS and one other 
Service have de-escalated to REAP 3.  You may also have seen in the news that three services in 
other parts of the country are now receiving military assistance due to the level of challenge they 
face.  Thankfully demand has calmed down a bit since the latter half of July, though it remains above 
expectations, but that is no different to any other part of the NHS at the moment.  
 
As a result of the above, we have implemented a number of changes to protect patients and our 
staff.  One of the biggest changes has been the introduction of the Clinical Validation Desk.  Calls 
continue to be triaged by our call assessors in the normal way: they are divided into four categories 
– Cat 1 is the most serious and includes a patient in cardiac arrest.  Category 2 included heart attacks 
and strokes while Category 3 are classed as ‘urgent’ and Category 4 as ‘non-urgent’ by NHS England.  
Under the new scheme, a number of Category 3 and 4 calls are further examined by a team of 
advanced paramedics in our control rooms.  The aim is to take these lower category calls and make 
better use of the alternative pathways that are available in the NHS. 
 
This could be through directing occupational therapy teams, fall co-ordination services or advanced 
nurse practitioners working in the community to visit the patient instead of an ambulance.  Many 
other calls are being resolved with advice only. The work of the team is expected to reduce the 
number of ambulance dispatches by several hundred each day purely by arranging for more 
appropriate healthcare staff to visit the patients.  Our ‘Hear and Treat’ rate has risen from around 
5% to 15% each day and may go higher still.  This allows us to focus our ambulances on the calls that 
really need our help and will allow us to respond more quickly. 
 
This brings me on to the next significant area of work, a review of the Trust’s CAS sites. Two have 
already closed – Leominster after it was flooded 18 months ago, and Uttoxeter which suffered a 
leak.  Stourport is due to close in early September.  The Operations team will be examining the other 
ten sites (Biddulph, Leek, Evesham, Malvern, Craven Arms, Oswestry, Market Drayton, Bridgnorth, 
Rugby and Stratfor upon Avon) over the coming weeks. 
 
There is a common misconception that where an ambulance starts or finishes a shift will have a 
substantial impact on the area that it is based in.  What must be remembered is that as soon as an 
ambulance is available it will be sent to the nearest available case so that we can minimise the time 
a patient waits to be seen, something I am sure you would support. This means that vehicles can 
often end up in rather odd places. Recently, we had a Dudley ambulance in Malvern and a Hereford 
vehicle that had gone to Birmingham Children’s Hospital then getting a case in Birmingham itself as 
it was the nearest ambulance available. 
 
If you look at the data from the first six months of the year, for the three CAS sites in Staffordshire, 
you find the following: 
 
Biddulph 
Total cases: 40,954 
Cases attended by the Biddulph ambulance: 1,353 
Percentage: 3.3% 
 
Leek  
Total cases: 44,086 

Page 14



4 
 

 

Cases attended by the Leek ambulance: 1,365 
Percentage: 3.1% 
 
Given what I have already outlined in regard to demand, it is now rare, if ever, that the crews who 
work at the CAS points ever get back to the site other than for their meal break or at the end of their 
shift.  Like the crews based at the Hubs, they literally go from one emergency to the next, 24 hours a 
day; they are no longer sat on a station anywhere in the region waiting for a call.  Therefore, one of 
the questions we are duty bound to consider is whether it is appropriate for the Trust to spend 
precious funds on buildings that are rarely used when these could instead be spent on additional 
staff and vehicles; the things that save lives? 
 
Currently, less than 50% of patients seen by our emergency crews are taken to hospital. This means 
that, for example in Biddulph, in roughly 20,000 occasions for the time period above, an ambulance 
was in the area available to respond, even though it wasn’t the ambulance that is based in the town.  
 
In cases where a patient needs to be taken to hospital, they will inevitably end up in Royal Stoke 
University Hospital (RSUH) depending on the patient’s condition and location.  If we assume that it 
was the Biddulph ambulance that took them to RSUH, then clearly it would not be in the town ready 
to respond to another call.  Quite rightly you would not expect us to wait for the ambulance based in 
the town to finish with its current patient before we responded to any subsequent call that is 
waiting in the area.  You can therefore see how the above figures come about. 
 
Whether we make any changes to the number of CAS sites or not, we would not decrease the 
number of staff or ambulances in the area, just change where they start or finish a shift.  
 
We recently closed a CAS site in Uttoxeter in Staffordshire and relocated the ambulance to Stafford 
Hub.  Today, when that crew come on shift, they will get into an ambulance that is fully fuelled, 
clean, stocked and ready for the full shift.  In contrast, when they were at the CAS site, twice a day 
the crew had to go to Stafford to exchange their vehicle for a newly stocked vehicle, reducing the 
amount of time that it was available to respond to incidents.   
 
Currently, there are only two permanent members of staff at Leek and seven at Biddulph – you need 
ten to operate an ambulance 24/7.  This means that each day we have to move staff from other 
locations to ensure the ambulance can operate.  Should we move these vehicles to Stoke Hub, then 
fewer staff will be affected by this than currently are. 
 
The welfare of staff is clearly one of our highest priorities, particularly when they are under so much 
pressure at the moment.  By having the ambulance based in Stafford, we will be better able to 
support the 10 staff previously based in Uttoxeter.  A manager is available at the Hub 24/7, whereas 
the staff in Uttoxeter would only have seen one when they went to the hub to change vehicle. 
 
The Trust has discussed the review with staffside colleagues and wrote to al l of the staff affected last 
week.  What we have said to both staff and their representatives is that should a CAS site close we 
will do what we have in Leominster, Uttoxeter and Stourport and work with the staff so that they 
can choose which Hub they move to and if they wish to stay on a current roster, then that will also 
be accommodated. 
 
I am sorry that the briefing is anything but brief, but I hope it provides a useful update about the 
current challenges and context about the review currently being undertaken.  If I can finish by 
assuring you that we will only make a change if we are convinced that it will benefit patients.  WMAS 

Page 15



5 
 

 

continues to be the highest performing ambulance service in the country and we aim to ensure that 
that position continues to be the case. 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
Murray MacGregor 
Communications Director 
West Midlands Ambulance Service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



Appendix A 
 

West Midlands Ambulance Service 

Statistical Data 

Moorlands area for the period 1st January to 31st July 2021 

Category Target Mean Target 
90th 

Centile 

Category 1 

Calls from people with life-threatening 
illnesses or injuries 

07:00 09:53 15:00 17:18 

Category 2 

Emergency calls 
18:00 20:35 40:00 35:16 

Category 3  

Urgent calls 

 

60:00 00:55:10 02:00:00 02:07:37 

Category 4 

Less urgent calls 
- 01:03:55 03:00:00 02:41:38 

  

WMAS should attend to half of Category 1 calls within 7 minutes and it is widely regarded as one of 

the toughest targets in the world for ambulance services.  We are also asked to get to 90% of calls 

within 15 minutes.  However, this also means that it is accepted that it will take more than 15 
minutes to get to one in ten calls, mainly because they are in very rural areas. 

For the Moorlands, it takes us 9mins 53 seconds to get to the half way mark of all calls and 17mins 

18 secs to get to the 90th centile. 

The numbers have been adversely affected by long handover delays at hospital that we have been 

experiencing in ever increasing numbers.  They have a huge impact on our ability to get to patients 
quickly. 

This link to the NHS England page explains the current response standards: 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/urgent-emergency-care/improving-ambulance-services/arp/ 

Response Time Figures for Biddulph 

2021 Calendar Year To Date (1st January to 31st July) 

    Category Mean 90th Centi le  
 

Cat 1 00:08:35 00:14:53 
 

Cat 2 00:17:42 00:31:16 
 

Cat 3 00:57:56 02:12:24 
 

Cat 4 01:12:11 02:48:11 
 

Page 17

https://www.england.nhs.uk/urgent-emergency-care/improving-ambulance-services/arp/


Appendix A 
 

    

2020 Calendar Year - Last 6 Months (1st July to 31st December) 

    Category Mean 90th Centi le  
 

Cat 1 00:08:42 00:15:15 
 

Cat 2 00:16:16 00:27:51 
 

Cat 3 00:43:41 01:45:44 
 

Cat 4 00:48:16 01:21:10 
 

    

    
 

Response Time Figures for Leek 

 
2021 Calendar Year To Date (1st January to 31st July) 

     

 
Category Mean 90th Centi le  

 

 

Cat 1 00:09:06 00:17:47 
 

 
Cat 2 00:20:01 00:35:40 

 

 
Cat 3 00:51:47 02:07:37 

 

 
Cat 4 01:00:22 02:32:44 

 

     

 
2020 Calendar Year - Last 6 Months (1st July to 31st December) 

     

 

Category Mean 90th Centi le  
 

 

Cat 1 00:07:50 00:16:55 
 

 
Cat 2 00:16:57 00:29:37 

 

 
Cat 3 00:41:27 01:42:06 

 

 
Cat 4 01:00:19 02:34:05 

 

     
  

 

Page 18



 
Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel  

Work Programme 2021/22 
 

Date 
 

Items for Agenda 

23 June 2021  
 North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Update 
 Update on the temporary closure of Leek Minor Injuries Unit. 
 Integrated Care Hub 

15 September 2021  

 Aftercare following discharge from hospital  
 MPFT Annual Update  
 WMAS – (Review of Community Ambulance Stations & rural provision of the Ambulance Service) 
  

15 December 2021  
  
  

9 March 2022  

  

  

TBC Regular progress updates on the Leek Integrated Care Hub 

 Dentistry 

 Mental health first aid training for staff and councillors 

 Annual Updates CCG, MPFT, Royal Stoke, WMAS , Combined Health Care & Healthwatch 

 Dementia Care Working Group Update Report  

 Provision of defibrillators 

 How the Council can empower people to take responsibility of their health and wellbeing 

 Collaborative Working/Primary Care Networks and Self-Care Model - MPFT 

 Healthwatch Staffordshire TBC - Invited 
 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	6 Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee.
	10 West Midlands Ambulance Service - Review of Community Ambulance Stations & rural provision of the Ambulance Service) - Mark Docherty, Director of Clinical Commissioning & Strategic Development/Executive Nurse. (3:10 pm)
	Appendix A - WMAS Statistical Data

	11 Work Programme. (3:40 pm)

